

IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE EASTERN DISTRICT OF VIRGINIA
ALEXANDRIA DIVISION

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA,)
STATE OF COLORADO,)
STATE OF MARYLAND,)
STATE OF MISSOURI,)
STATE OF NEVADA,)
STATE OF TENNESSEE,)
STATE OF UTAH, and)
COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA,) Civil Action No. _____)
)
Plaintiffs,)
)
vs.)
)
CENTEX HOMES, A NEVADA)
GENERAL PARTNERSHIP,)
)
Defendant.)
_____)

COMPLAINT

Plaintiff, the United States of America, by authority of the Attorney General of the United States, at the request of the Administrator of the United States Environmental Protection Agency ("EPA"), by and through their undersigned attorneys, with respect to claims under federal law; and Plaintiffs, the State of Colorado, by the authority of the Colorado Attorney General's Office, at the request of the Colorado Department of Public Health and Environment; the State of Maryland by the authority of the Attorney General of Maryland, at the request of the Maryland Department of the Environment; the State of Missouri, by authority of the Attorney General of Missouri; the State of Nevada by the authority of the Attorney General of Nevada, at the request of the Department of Conservation and Natural Resources through Nevada Division of

Environmental Protection; the State of Tennessee by the authority of the Attorney General of the State of Tennessee, at the request of the Tennessee Department of Environment and Conservation; the State of Utah by the authority of the Utah Department of Environmental Quality; and the Commonwealth of Virginia, at the request of the Virginia Department of Conservation and Recreation and by approval of the Governor of Virginia, (hereinafter, "State Plaintiffs") by and through their undersigned attorneys, with respect to their state law claims, allege as follows:

INTRODUCTION

1. This is a civil action for injunctive relief and civil penalties brought pursuant to Section 309(b) and (d) of the Clean Water Act ("CWA"), 33 U.S.C. § 1319(b) and (d), against Centex Homes, a Nevada general partnership, ("Centex") for the discharge of pollutants in storm water without a permit in violation of CWA Section 301, 33 U.S.C. § 1311; for failure to provide information to the Administrator in violation of CWA Section 308, 33 U.S.C. § 1318; and for failure to comply with the conditions of permits (including various state general permits) issued pursuant to CWA Section 402, 33 U.S.C. § 1342, for the discharge of pollutants in storm water from construction sites, in violation of CWA Section 301, 33 U.S.C. § 1311. This action also is brought pursuant to the Colorado Water Quality Control Act ("CWQCA"), §§ 25-8-607 and -608, C.R.S.; Sections 9-339 and 9-342 of the Environment Article, Annotated Code of Maryland; Missouri Clean Water Law, § 644.076 RSMo.; Nev. Rev. Stat. §§ 445A.695 and 445A.700; Tennessee Water Quality Control Act, Tenn. Code Ann. §§ 69-3-115(a)(2)(D) and -117; Utah Water Quality Act, Utah Code Ann. §§ 19-5-101 to -123; and the Virginia Stormwater Management Act, Va. Code Ann. §§ 10.1-603.1 to -603.15, against Centex for similar violations of State Plaintiffs' state laws (hereinafter referred to as State Plaintiffs' "analogous state laws").

JURISDICTION AND VENUE

2. This Court has jurisdiction over the subject matter of this action pursuant to 28 U.S.C. §§ 1331, 1345 and 1355 and 33 U.S.C. § 1319(b). This Court has jurisdiction over the State Plaintiffs' claims pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1367 (supplemental jurisdiction).

3. Venue is proper in this District pursuant to 33 U.S.C. § 1319(b), and 28 U.S.C. §§ 1391 and 1395, because Centex conducts business in this District, and because certain of the violations occurred in this District.

4. Notice of the commencement of this action has been given to the States of Arizona, California, Colorado, Delaware, Florida, Georgia, Hawaii, Illinois, Indiana, Maryland, Michigan, Minnesota, Missouri, Nevada, New Hampshire, New Jersey, New Mexico, North Carolina, Ohio, Oregon, South Carolina, Tennessee, Texas, Utah, and Washington, and the Commonwealths of Kentucky, Pennsylvania, and Virginia in accordance with 33 U.S.C. § 1319(b).

DEFENDANT

5. Centex is a partnership organized under the laws of Nevada and is a "person" as defined in CWA Section 502, 33 U.S.C. § 1362(5), 40 C.F.R. § 122.2.

6. Centex is a partnership doing business in 26 states, including this District. Centex's principal place of business is in Dallas, Texas. Hereinafter, the term "Centex" includes subsidiaries wholly owned by Centex, and entities where Centex owns a majority interest in the entity and an entity having a common parent with Centex owns the remaining interest.

7. Centex has constructed and/or is currently constructing residential homes on various pieces of property owned and/or operated by Centex throughout the United States, including this District. Centex constructs thousands of new homes each year.

STATUTORY AND REGULATORY AUTHORITY

8. The Clean Water Act is designed to restore and maintain the chemical, physical and biological integrity of the nation's waters. 33 U.S.C. § 1251(a).
9. To accomplish the objectives of the Act, CWA Section 301(a), 33 U.S.C. § 1311(a), prohibits the “discharge of any pollutant” by any person except in certain circumstances, including in compliance with a National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (“NPDES”) permit issued by EPA pursuant to CWA Section 402, 33 U.S.C. § 1342.
10. CWA Section 502(12), 33 U.S.C. § 1362(12), defines the term “discharge of a pollutant” as, *inter alia*, “any addition of any pollutant to navigable waters from any point source.”
11. CWA Section 402(p), 33 U.S.C. § 1342(p), requires a permit for storm water discharges associated with industrial activity.
12. EPA regulations define the term “storm water discharge associated with industrial activity” to include storm water discharges from construction activities, including clearing, grading, and excavation activities, that result in a disturbance of five or more acres of total land area. 40 C.F.R. § 122.26(b)(14)(x). Construction activity also includes the disturbance of less than five acres of total land area that is part of a larger common plan of development or sale if the larger common plan will ultimately disturb equal to or greater than five acres. *Id.*
13. EPA regulations also define the term “storm water discharge associated with small construction activity” to include storm water discharges from construction activities, including clearing, grading, and excavation activities, that result in a disturbance of equal to or greater than one acre and less than five acres. 40 C.F.R. § 122.26(b)(15)(i). Construction activity also includes the disturbance of less than one acre of total land area that is part of a larger common

plan of development or sale if the larger common plan will ultimately disturb equal to or greater than one acre. Id.

14. State Plaintiffs' analogous state laws require a permit for discharges of storm water associated with construction activities to state waters.

15. In 1992, EPA issued a Final NPDES General Permit for Storm Water Discharges from Construction Activities. 57 Fed. Reg. 41176, 41209 (Sept. 9, 1992). EPA has, on various occasions, subsequently modified and reissued this general permit. See 63 Fed. Reg. 7858-7906 (Feb. 17, 1998); 63 Fed. Reg. 36490-36519 (July 6, 1998); 65 Fed. Reg. 25122-25145 (Apr. 28, 2000); 68 Fed. Reg. 39087-39091 (July 1, 2003).

16. Pursuant to the CWA Section 402(b), 33 U.S.C. § 1342(b), states may issue their own storm water permits for discharges into navigable waters within their jurisdiction if they are authorized by EPA to do so. Most states, including State Plaintiffs, are so authorized and have issued their own NPDES general permits governing discharges of storm water associated with construction activities. See Colorado General Permit for Storm Water Discharges Associated with Construction Activity No. COR - 030000; Maryland State Discharge Permit Number 09GP, General NPDES Permit Number MDR10; Missouri Land Disturbance General Permit MO-R101000; Nevada Stormwater General Permit NVR100000; Tennessee General NPDES Permit for Discharges of Storm Water Associated with Construction Activities, GP-02-01; Utah Storm Water General Permit for Construction Activities, Permit No. UTR100000; Virginia General Permit for Discharges of Stormwater from Construction Activities, General Permit No. DCR01. For states that have not been authorized, EPA remains the permitting authority for purposes of the CWA, and the federal general permit applies. The United States may enforce the state-issued

NPDES permit under the CWA, and State Plaintiffs may enforce their state-issued permits pursuant to their analogous state laws. The federal or state NPDES general permit for storm water discharges associated with construction activities that applies in a state is hereinafter referred to as the "Applicable Permit."

17. Section 308 of the Clean Water Act, 33 U.S.C. § 1318, requires owners and operators of point sources to submit information to the EPA Administrator as needed to carry out the objectives of the Clean Water Act, including the NPDES permit program of CWA Section 402, 33 U.S.C. § 1342.

18. Under EPA's regulations, persons who discharge or who propose to discharge "storm water associated with industrial activity" are required to apply for an individual permit or seek coverage under a promulgated storm water general permit. 40 C.F.R. §§ 122.21(a) & (c), 122.26(c), 122.28. In applying for coverage under a storm water individual or general permit, a potential permittee must provide the necessary information on the basis of which EPA (or the state permitting agency) may evaluate the appropriateness of the issuance of and the terms of any such permit.

19. Under 40 C.F.R. § 122.21(c), a discharger proposing a new discharge of storm water associated with construction activity covered by 40 C.F.R. § 122.26(b)(14)(x) and (15)(i) must submit an application 90 days before the date construction is to commence, or by the deadlines provided by the terms of any applicable general permit. See 40 C.F.R. § 122.28(b)(2).

20. State Plaintiffs' analogous state laws require persons proposing to discharge storm water associated with construction activity to submit information to the State as needed to carry out the objectives of State Plaintiffs' analogous state laws.

21. Though they differ in some of the details, in general, under the general permits, any person subject to the permit is required to develop a storm water pollution prevention plan (“SWPPP”), which sets forth a plan to control and reduce pollutants in storm water discharges from construction activities. Federal CGP, Parts 3.1.B.2 and 3.4.A. The SWPPP must meet specific requirements and include certain information. Federal CGP, Part 3.

22. A central requirement of the SWPPP is the selection of best management practices (“BMPs”). BMPs are management practices implemented “to prevent or reduce the discharge of pollutants to waters of the United States.” Federal CGP, Appendix A. These practices include measures to prevent erosion (such as the scheduling of the project to minimize the amount of land that is being graded at any particular time) and measures to capture sediment before it leaves the site (such as silt fences and sedimentation basins).

23. The permits also require the permittee to implement the SWPPP and to properly operate and maintain the BMPs. Federal CGP, Parts 3.1.D and 3.6.A.

24. The permits impose additional requirements, including, inter alia: inspection of the site during construction, Federal CGP, Part 3.10; maintenance of the SWPPP and sometimes other records at the site, Federal CGP, Part 3.12; and final stabilization of the site followed by termination of permit coverage, Federal CGP, Part 5.1.A.

25. CWA Section 309(b), 33 U.S.C. § 1319(b), authorizes the Administrator of EPA “to commence a civil action for appropriate relief, including a permanent or temporary injunction,” when any person is in violation of 33 U.S.C. §§ 1311, 1318, or of any permit issued pursuant to CWA Section 402, 33 U.S.C. § 1342. State Plaintiffs are authorized to seek injunctive relief for such violations pursuant to their analogous state laws. CWQCA § 25-8-607,

C.R.S.; §§ 4-116, 4-416, and 9-339 of the Environment Article, Annotated Code of Maryland; § 644.076 RSMo.; Nev. Rev. Stat. §§ 445A.465, 445A.695 and 445A.700; Tenn. Code Ann. § 69-3-117; Utah Code Ann. § 19-5-115; and Virginia Stormwater Management Act, Va. Code Ann. § 10.1-603.12:4.

26. CWA Section 309(d), 33 U.S.C. § 1319(d), provides, in part, that any person who violates 33 U.S.C. §§ 1311, 1318, or any permit issued pursuant to CWA Section 402, 33 U.S.C. § 1342, shall be subject to a civil penalty not to exceed \$27,500 per day for each such violation occurring after January 29, 1997 through and including March 15, 2004, and \$32,500 per day for each such violation thereafter. 33 U.S.C. § 1319(d); 40 C.F.R. § 19.4; 62 Fed. Reg. 7121-01 (Feb. 13, 2004) (codified at 40 C.F.R. pt. 19). State Plaintiffs are authorized to seek civil penalties for such violations pursuant to their analogous state laws. CWQCA § 25-8-608(1), C.R.S.; §§ 4-116, 4-417 and 9-342 of the Environment Article, Annotated Code of Maryland; § 644.076 RSMo.; Nev. Rev. Stat. § 445A.700; Tenn. Code Ann. § 69-3-115(a)(2)(D); Utah Code Ann. § 19-5-115; and Virginia Stormwater Management Act, Va. Code Ann. § 10.1-603.14.

GENERAL ALLEGATIONS

27. Based on inspections conducted at 26 Centex construction sites in 9 states between 2000 and 2005, EPA discovered a pattern of failures by Centex to timely obtain coverage under Applicable Permits prior to site disturbing activities that could or did result in discharges of pollutants, and a pattern of failures to comply with the requirements of Applicable Permits for the discharge of storm water from these construction sites. These sites are included in the list of sites attached as Appendix A. Additional information was obtained, including from Centex's responses to information requests issued by EPA pursuant to CWA Section 308, 33 U.S.C. §

1318, which provided evidence of additional violations at Centex sites that are also included in Appendix A. Appendix A also includes sites at which Centex was engaged in construction activities as of March 31, 2008. Based on the inspections, responses to information requests and other information, the United States alleges (and State Plaintiffs allege with respect to sites in their states) that Centex has a pattern of failures to timely obtain coverage under Applicable Permits prior to site disturbing activities that could or did result in discharges of pollutants, and a pattern of failures to comply with the requirements of Applicable Permits for the discharge of storm water from the Centex construction sites listed in Appendix A.

28. At each of the sites listed on Appendix A, Centex engaged in construction activities that resulted in the disturbance of at least one acre.

29. Centex's sites in Appendix A, themselves, as well as the storm sewers, ditches, or other conveyances referenced in Paragraph 30 below, constitute "point source[s]" within the meaning of CWA Section 502(14), 33 U.S.C. § 1362(14).

30. Centex's construction activities resulted in the addition of "pollutants," including rock, sand, cellar dirt, industrial waste, solid waste, and other pollutants, to storm sewers, ditches, or other conveyances that discharge to streams, creeks, and other water bodies that are "waters of the United States," within the meaning of CWA Section 502(6) and (7), 33 U.S.C. § 1362(6), (7), and 40 C.F.R. § 122.2, and also resulted in the discharge of pollutants to state waters under State Plaintiffs' analogous state laws.

31. Centex has discharged pollutants within the meanings of Sections 301 and 502(12) of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. §§ 1311 and 1362(12), and 40 C.F.R. § 122.2, without permit authorization.

32. Centex is a person that proposed to discharge or who otherwise was required to timely apply for coverage under an Applicable Permit, pursuant to CWA Sections 308 and 402(p), 33 U.S.C. §§ 1318 and 1342(p), 40 C.F.R. §§ 122.21(a), (c), 122.26(c), and 122.28, and State Plaintiffs' analogous state laws.

33. Centex failed to timely submit the information required to apply for or obtain coverage under the Applicable Permit, including but not limited to, at the following sites: Creekside Landing in Yorktown, PA; Kensington in Glen Allen, VA; New Territory in Sugarland, TX; and Linden Park in Fort Collins, CO.

34. At sites for which Centex did obtain permit coverage, Centex violated the Applicable Permit, including but not limited to, at the following sites: Riddle Farm in West Ocean City, MD; Blackbird Knolls in Loveland, CO; Lincoln Crossing in Lincoln, CA; Brambleton in Ashburn, VA; Lakeridge Falls in Sarasota, FL; and Buckleigh in Charlotte, NC. Violations of storm water requirements at these and other sites include, but are not necessarily limited to: failure to install and maintain storm water controls (such as vehicle track out pads, inlet protection, silt fencing to minimize off-site sediment and erosion runoff); failure to properly design or implement BMPs; failure to prepare an adequate SWPPP; failure to conduct inspections; and failure to conduct inspections in accordance with the Applicable Permit requirements.

FIRST CLAIM FOR RELIEF

CENTEX DISCHARGED POLLUTANTS IN STORM WATER WITHOUT AN APPLICABLE PERMIT

35. Plaintiffs reallege and incorporate by reference Paragraphs 1 through 34.

36. Centex discharged pollutants in storm water to waters of the United States without

coverage under an Applicable Permit in violation of CWA Section 301, 33 U.S.C. § 1311, and discharged pollutants in storm water to waters of one or more of the State Plaintiffs in violation of analogous state laws.

37. Unless enjoined, these violations will continue or will recur at other construction sites.

38. Pursuant to 33 U.S.C. § 1319, Centex is liable for injunctive relief and civil penalties of up to \$27,500 per day for each such violation occurring after January 29, 1997 through and including March 15, 2004 and \$32,500 per day for each such violation thereafter per day per violation.

39. Pursuant to State Plaintiffs' analogous state laws, Centex is liable to each State Plaintiff for injunctive relief and civil penalties for each violation that occurred at a site in its state that is listed on Appendix A. CWQCA §§ 25-8-607 and -608, C.R.S.; §§ 4-116, 4-416, 4-417, 9-339, and 9-342 of the Environment Article, Annotated Code of Maryland; § 644.076 RSMo.; Nev. Rev. Stat. §§ 445A.695 and 445A.700; Tenn. Code Ann. § 69-3-115(a)(2)(D) & -117; Utah Code Ann. § 19-5-115; Virginia Stormwater Management Act, Va. Code Ann. §§ 10.1-603.12:4 and -603.14.

SECOND CLAIM FOR RELIEF

CENTEX FAILED TO TIMELY SUBMIT THE INFORMATION REQUIRED TO OBTAIN COVERAGE UNDER AN APPLICABLE PERMIT

40. Plaintiffs reallege and incorporate by reference Paragraphs 1 through 34.

41. Centex failed to timely submit the information required to obtain coverage under an Applicable Permit for the discharge of storm water associated with its construction activities in

violation of CWA Section 308, 33 U.S.C. § 1318, and failed to timely submit the information required to obtain coverage under an Applicable Permit for the discharge of storm water pursuant to one or more State Plaintiffs' analogous state laws.

42. Pursuant to 33 U.S.C. § 1319, Centex is liable for injunctive relief and civil penalties of up to \$27,500 per day for each such violation occurring after January 29, 1997 through and including March 15, 2004 and \$32,500 per day for each such violation thereafter per day per violation.

43. Pursuant to State Plaintiffs' analogous state laws, Centex is liable to each State Plaintiff for injunctive relief and civil penalties for each violation that occurred at a site in its state that is listed on Appendix A. CWQCA §§ 25-8-607 and -608, C.R.S.; §§ 4-116, 4-416, 4-417, 9-339, and 9-342 of the Environment Article, Annotated Code of Maryland; § 644.076 RSMo.; Nev. Rev. Stat. §§ 445A.695 and 445A.700; Tenn. Code Ann. § 69-3-115(a)(2)(D) & -117; Utah Code Ann. § 19-5-115; Virginia Stormwater Management Act, Va. Code Ann. §§ 10.1-603.12:4 and -603.14.

THIRD CLAIM FOR RELIEF

CENTEX VIOLATED THE REQUIREMENTS OF THE APPLICABLE PERMITS

44. Plaintiffs reallege and incorporate by reference Paragraphs 1 through 34.

45. Centex failed to comply with the terms and conditions of the Applicable Permits, in violation of CWA Section 301, 33 U.S.C. § 1311, and one or more State Plaintiffs' analogous state laws.

46. Unless enjoined, these violations will continue or will recur at other construction

sites.

47. Pursuant to 33 U.S.C. § 1319, Centex is liable for injunctive relief and civil penalties of up to \$27,500 per day for each such violation occurring after January 29, 1997 through and including March 15, 2004 and \$32,500 per day for each such violation thereafter per day per violation.

48. Pursuant to State Plaintiffs' analogous state laws, Centex is liable to each State Plaintiff for injunctive relief and civil penalties for each violation that occurred at a site in its state that is listed on Appendix A. CWQCA §§ 25-8-607 and -608, C.R.S.; §§ 4-116, 4-416, 4-417, 9-339, and 9-342 of the Environment Article, Annotated Code of Maryland; § 644.076 RSMo.; Nev. Rev. Stat. §§ 445A.695 and 445A.700; Tenn. Code Ann. § 69-3-115(a)(2)(D) & -117; Utah Code Ann. § 19-5-115; Virginia Stormwater Management Act, Va. Code Ann. §§ 10.1-603.12:4 and -603.14.

PRAYER FOR RELIEF

WHEREFORE, the United States of America and the State Plaintiffs respectfully request that this Court:

A. Order Centex to comply with the terms of the Act and the conditions of Applicable Permits at its construction sites by requiring, among other things, the development and implementation of appropriate storm water pollution prevention plans, the application of BMPs to minimize or eliminate discharges of pollutants from its sites, and the implementation of corporate policies designed to achieve and assure compliance with the Applicable Permits and the Act;

B. Assess civil penalties against Centex of up to \$27,500 per day for each violation occurring after January 29, 1997 through and including March 15, 2004 and \$32,500 per day for

each violation thereafter per day for each violation;

- C. Award the United States its costs and disbursements in this action; and
- D. Grant any such further relief as this Court deems just and proper.

Respectfully submitted,

FOR THE UNITED STATES OF AMERICA:

RONALD J. TENPAS
Counsel for the United States
Assistant Attorney General
Environment and Natural Resources Division
United States Department of Justice
950 Pennsylvania Ave., NW
Room 2603
Washington, DC 20530
202-514-2701
202-514-0557 (fax)
Ronald.Tenpas@usdoj.gov

FOR THE UNITED STATES OF AMERICA (Cont.):

JAMES D. FREEMAN
CHRISTY KING-GILMORE
Counsel for the United States
Trial Attorneys
Environmental Enforcement Section
United States Department of Justice
1961 Stout Street
8th Floor
Denver, CO 80294
303-844-1489
303-844-1350 (fax)
James.Freeman2@usdoj.gov

CHUCK ROSENBERG
United States Attorney

By

GERARD MENE
Counsel for the United States
Assistant U.S. Attorney
2100 Jamieson Avenue
Alexandria, Virginia 22314
703-299-3777
703-299-3983 (fax)
Gerard.Mene@usdoj.gov

OF COUNSEL:

EVERETT E. VOLK

Office of Enforcement and Compliance Assurance
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
1200 Pennsylvania Avenue, NW
MC 2243A Room 3120A
Washington, DC 20460
202-564-2828
202-564-0018 (fax)
volk.everett@epa.gov

WENDY I. SILVER

Senior Attorney
U.S. EPA Region 8
1595 Wynkoop Street
Denver, CO 80202-1129
303-312-6637
silver.wendy@epa.gov

LAURIE KERMISH

Senior Attorney
Office of Regional Counsel (ORC-2)
U.S. EPA Region 9
75 Hawthorne Street
San Francisco, CA 94105
415-972-3917
415-974-3570 (fax)
kermish.laurie@epa.gov

FOR THE STATE OF COLORADO:

JOHN W. SUTHERS
Attorney General of Colorado

WILLIAM C. ALLISON, V
Counsel for the State of Colorado
First Assistant Attorney General
Environmental Quality Unit
Natural Resources and Environment Section
Colorado Office of the Attorney General
1525 Sherman Street, 5th Floor
Denver, CO 80203
303-866-4500
303-866-3558 (fax)
william.allison@state.co.us

FOR THE STATE OF MARYLAND:

DOUGLAS F. GANSLER
Attorney General of Maryland

JENNIFER L. WAZENSKI
Counsel for the State of Maryland
Assistant Attorney General
Office of the Attorney General
Maryland Department of the Environment
1800 Washington Boulevard, Suite 6048
Baltimore, MD 21230
410-537-3058
410-537-3943 (fax)
jwazenski@mde.state.md.us

FOR THE STATE OF MISSOURI:

JEREMIAH W. (JAY) NIXON
Attorney General

HARRY D. BOZOIAN
Counsel for the State of Missouri
Deputy Chief Counsel
P.O. Box 899
Jefferson City, MO 65102
573-751-8803
573-751-8796 (fax)
harry.bozoian@ago.mo.gov

FOR THE STATE OF NEVADA:

CATHERINE CORTEZ MASTO
Attorney General of Nevada

JANET HESS
Counsel for the State of Nevada
Deputy Attorney General
State of Nevada
100 N. Carson St.
Carson City, NV 89701
775-684-1270
775-684-1108 (fax)
jhess@ag.nv.gov

FOR THE STATE OF TENNESSEE:

ROBERT E. COOPER, JR.
Attorney General of Tennessee

ELIZABETH P. McCARTER
Counsel for the State of Tennessee
Senior Counsel
Tennessee Attorney General's Office
P.O. Box 20207
Nashville, TN 37202
615-532-2582
615-741-8724 (fax)
Lisa.McCarter@state.tn.us

FOR THE STATE OF UTAH:

MARK SHURTLEFF
Utah Attorney General

LAURA LOCKHART
Counsel for the State of Utah
Assistant Attorney General
Utah Attorney General's Office
160 East 300 South
5th Floor
P.O. Box 140873
Salt Lake City, UT 84114-0873
801-366-0283
801-366-0292 (fax)
llockhart@utah.gov

FOR THE COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA:

ROBERT F. McDONNELL
Attorney General
Commonwealth of Virginia

ELIZABETH A. ANDREWS
Counsel for the Commonwealth of Virginia
Assistant Attorney General
900 E. Main Street
Richmond, VA 23219
804-786-6957
804-786-0034 (fax)
eandrews@oag.state.va.us

Appendix A

APPENDIX A

	Community Name	Address or Location Description	County (or City)	State
1	Anthem 10	NW corner of Gavilan Peak Pkwy and Trlumph, Anthem	Maricopa	AZ
2	Anthem 41 A and B	West of Gavilan Peak Parkway and Whitman Rd., Anthem	Maricopa	AZ
3	Camden Villas	NE corner of 36th St. and Moreland St., Phoenix	Maricopa	AZ
4	Canyon Trails	17478 W. Woodland Ave; 17230 W. Lilac St.	Maricopa	AZ
5	Cibola Vista	NWC 95th Ave and Jomax Rd	Maricopa	AZ
6	Desert Oasis	NWC 163rd Ave and Jomax Rd; 16450 W. Antelope Dr.; NWC 171ST Ave & Jomax Rd; 26905 N. 175th Lane; SEC Dynamite Rd & 179th Ave	Maricopa	AZ
7	Eagle Pass	5796 N. 74th Lane, Glendale	Maricopa	AZ
8	Estrella Manor/Las Colinas	3301 S. 67th Ave., Phoenix	Maricopa	AZ
9	Fox Trail	NWC 219TH Ave & Deer Valley Rd	Maricopa	AZ
10	Laveen Farms	6846 W. Darrel Road; 75th Avenue South of Southern Ave	Maricopa	AZ
11	Sweetwater Heights	8773 W. Aster Dr.	Maricopa	AZ
12	Tierra Del Rio	107th Ave, Happy Valley Road & Hatfield Road	Maricopa	AZ
13	Verrado	Verrado Way & Thomas Rd	Maricopa	AZ
14	Westwind	SEC Palo Verde Rd and Lower Buckeye Road	Maricopa	AZ
15	Glennwilde	SWC Honeycutt Road & Porter Rd	Pinal	AZ
16	Johnson Ranch	Johnson Ranch Blvd and W/O Bella Vista	Pinal	AZ
17	Laredo Ranch	NEC Schnepf Rd and Combs Road	Pinal	AZ
18	Pecan Creek South	NEC Gantzel Rd and Combs Rd	Pinal	AZ
19	Avignon	Vineyard Avenue at Machado Place,	Alameda	CA
20	Fairfield Ranch		Chino Hills	CA
21	Riata	Southeast corner of O'hara and Brownstone Roads	Contra Costa	CA
22	Windemere (including Celamonte, Chantera, La Sera, Fioli, Oliveta, Sera Vista)	Sleeping Meadows Way; East Branch Pkwy and Windemere Pkwy	Contra Costa	CA
23	Brentridge	3632 Logan Circle	Corona	CA
24	Crescent Grove	S. of Foothill/W. of Lincoln	Corona	CA
25	Alta Mira (also known as Blackstone)	West Valley Village & Latrobe Rd	El Dorado	CA
26	Ashwood Park	SWC Dakota @ Polk	Fresno	CA
27	Falcon Ridge	SWC Hamilton @ Armstrong	Fresno	CA
28	Fancher Creek	N of Kings Canyon @ Fowler Ave East and West	Fresno	CA
29	Highland Ranch	SWC Sheilds @ Locan	Fresno	CA
30	Ivywood	NWC Armstrong & California	Fresno	CA
31	Lafayette Square	E Shepard Ave at Clovis	Fresno	CA
32	Maple Run	N Bryan Ave btw Shaw and Gettysburg	Fresno	CA
33	Briarwood and Fox Run (Tract 6349)	Buena Vista @ Panama	Kern	CA
34	Castalina	SEC Paladino @ Cosmo st	Kern	CA
35	Cobblestone	N SR 119 E Ashe Rd	Kern	CA
36	Eagle Crest	Rudal Rd cross Kern River	Kern	CA
37	Wild Oak (Tract 6225)	County Line Rd @ Driver Rd	Kern	CA
38	Copper Valley	SW Corner 12th @ Fargo	Kings	CA
39	Milestone	Golden Valley Road	LA	CA
40	Sterling (previously Dayton Canyon)	24000 Roscoe Blvd, Canoga Park	LA	CA
41	Stone Canyon	Padua Ave & North of Mt. Baldy	LA	CA
42	Provence (Millhouse)	Horizons Avenue and Avignon Drive	Merced	CA
43	The Preserve at SCGA	29356 Deerfield Ct.	Murrieta	CA
44	Del Rio (including Pebble, Thistle, Sage)	Riverbend Parkway and Glassell, City of Orange	Orange	CA
45	High Point Estates in Serrano Heights Phase II		Orange	CA
46	St. Anne's Place - Serrano Heights	Serrano Heights Tract 14550, Serrano Avenue	Orange	CA
47	St. John's Heights in Serrano Heights Phase I		Orange	CA
48	River Glen		Paso Robles	CA
49	3D South (including Red Hawk & Hawks Landing)	Moore Rd. & Future Hwy 65 By-pass	Placer	CA
50	Lincoln Crossing (includes Quail Creek, Montevista, Claremont, Belmont, Sky Ranch, Montevista II)	Caledon Circle & Brentford Circle; Brentford Circle S. of Ingram Slough	Placer	CA
51	West Park (Avonlea, Meadowgate, Carrington, Monument)	West Park and Fiddymont	Placer	CA
52	Whitney Ranch (including Black Oak)	Whitney Ranch & Bridlewood Dr.	Placer	CA
53	Woodcreek West, Village 11B	3700 Douglas Blvd., Suite 150, Roseville	Placer	CA
54	Orchard Ridge	Lombardi & Westfield Ave.	Porterville	CA
55	Carrington at Eastvale Downs / Crestfield at Eastvale Downs	6701 Harrison Ave, Corona	Riverside	CA
56	Creekside (including Wyndham & Park Lane)	Murrieta Hot Springs Rd and White Water, Murrieta	Riverside	CA
57	De La Rosa (also known as Merrit & Luster)	Crumpton Street at Riverside Street, Lake Elsinore	Riverside	CA
58	Heberwood Estates	North West of Highway 86 and Dogwood Rd, Heber	Riverside	CA
59	Hemingway at Redhawk	Tract 23064; Deer Hollow Way Easter of Peppercorn Dr, Temecula	Riverside	CA

Community Name	Address or Location Description	County (or City)	CA
60 Hideway	Fruitvale Ave Between Palm Ave and State Street, Hemet	Riverside	CA
61 Mission Ranch (including Ardenwood-Turnbridge, West, Ardenwood, Hawskbury)	Intersection of Dauchy & Krameria, Riverside	Riverside	CA
62 Monte Vina	Ave 44 E Golf Center Pkwy, Indio	Riverside	CA
63 Orchard Glen	Foothill and Lincoln, Corona	Riverside	CA
64 Painted Trails/ Eagle Ranch	Topaz & N of Luna, Victorville	Riverside	CA
65 Perris 496	South West Corner of Orange Ave and Evans Rd, Perris	Riverside	CA
66 Porch Street East	Home Gardens Area	Riverside	CA
67 Porch Street West	Buchanan and Magnolia, Riverside	Riverside	CA
68 Riverwood	West Geotz Rd and South of Mapes Rd, Perris	Riverside	CA
69 Rosetta Canyon (including Augusta, Santa Rosa, Caraway, Rosetta Canyon)	E of I 15 & South of Hwy 74, Lake Elsinore	Riverside	CA
70 Seneca Springs	S. of Potrero Blvd E of Manzanita, Beaumont	Riverside	CA
71 Sterling Valley	SW Corner of Archibald Ave & 65th Street, Corona	Riverside	CA
72 Stratford (including Cedanna & Encanto)	South East Corner of Evans Rd and La Vina Blvd, Perris	Riverside	CA
73 Stratford at Redhawk	Tract 23065-3; Primrose Ave & Peachtree Rd, Riverside	Riverside	CA
74 Terracina	North East Corner of Lakeshore Drive and Terra Cotta Rd, Lake Elsinore	Riverside	CA
75 The Lakes (including The Lakes @ Menifee, Brighton @ Menifee, Hampton @ Menifee, Cambridge @ Menifee, Crystal Bay @ Menifee & Silver Pointe @ Menifee)	S/E Corner of Newport Rd & Menifee Rd, Menifee	Riverside	CA
76 Anatolia III (Including Cypress @ Kavala Ranch)	Jaeger Rd. & Kiefer Blvd.	Sacramento	CA
77 Astoria (also known as West El Camino)	West El Camino Ave Cross Grass	Sacramento	CA
78 Sheldon Place	East of Stockton Blvd. North of Bow St.	Sacramento	CA
79 Sheldon White House/ Serenade	8713, 8737, 8751 Whitehouse Rd	Sacramento	CA
80 The Parkway, Villages D2 and E3	1244 Meredith Way & 1239 Souza Way, Folsom	Sacramento	CA
81 Coyote Canyon (including Millbrook, Willowbend, & Ridgecrest)	Coyote Canyon Rd and Roadrunner Rd, Fontana	San Bernardino	CA
82 Northwood Ranch	N of Summit Ave and E of Citrus, Fontana	San Bernardino	CA
83 Sumner Ranch (including Chambray, Palomino & Tanner Creek)	South East Corner of Sumner Ave & 65th, Norco	San Bernardino	CA
84 The Preserves (includes Canterbury Grove I, Canterbury Grove II, Agave, Citrus)	15988 Huntington Garden Ave, Chino	San Bernardino	CA
85 Arbor Ranch	1108 Poinsettia Ave (intersection of Poinsettia Ave & Linda Vista Ave), San Marcos	San Diego	CA
86 Brightwater	County area, Lakeside	San Diego	CA
87 The Groves/The Terraces	2813 Oro Blanco Circle, Escondido	San Diego	CA
88 The Knolls	3136 Beven Dr, Escondido	San Diego	CA
89 Acacia	Ventura Street and Moraga Street,	San Joaquin	CA
90 Cardona	South of Escuela Altamont Dr. and Patio De Recreo Way,	San Joaquin	CA
91 Hawthorne	De Anza Blvd and Montebello Street,	San Joaquin	CA
92 Marbella	Las Brisas Drive and Sombra Way	San Joaquin	CA
93 Broad Street Mix Use	3592 Broad St Hwy 227, San Luis Obispo	San Luis Obispo	CA
94 Cypress Ridge	1080 Cypress Ridge Parkway, Arroyo Grande	San Luis Obispo	CA
95 Dove Creek (including Villas, Cottages, Collections)	11804 Cumbre Court, Atascadero	San Luis Obispo	CA
96 Amicelli Community	2904 Langhorne Dr.	San Ramon	CA
97 Trellis	610 Alberta Way	Santa Clara	CA
98 The Cove at Bridgeport	S. of Newhall Ranch Rd./between Bridgeview & Bayside Lane	Santa Clarita	CA
99 Old Ranch Tract 15797	Seal Beach and Rossmoor Ct.	Seal Beach	CA
100 Waters End	North of Rose Town Dr. between Panorama and McAllister Dr.	Solano	CA
101 Chaparral Property	Northwest of the intersection of Floyd Avenue and Lincoln Oak,	Stanislaus	CA
102 Laredo (The Plaza)	Floyd Avenue and Temescal Drive	Stanislaus	CA
103 Royo/ Teal Hollow	Cross of Monroe Drive & Royo Ranchero Drive	Sutter	CA
104 Avalon	N Riggan W Demaree	Tulare	CA
105 Shannon Ranch	Riggan Ave	Tulare	CA
106 Sherwood North	W Rd 84 @ Pleasant	Tulare	CA
107 Villas at Bella Sera	E Akers N Goshen	Tulare	CA
108 West Park	Visalia Parkway Akers @ Caldwell	Tulare	CA
109 Willow Creek	NE Corner of Mcauliff St & Mineral King	Tulare	CA
110 Brighten Lane	Corner of Maurice Dr & Reino Road	Ventura	CA
111 Reserve at Reino	Reino Rd & Woodland Oak Pl	Ventura	CA
112 Reserve at the Mayflower	W. of Int Worwick & Mayflower	Ventura	CA
113 Riverpark	Simon Way/Vineyard	Ventura	CA
114 South Hills	End of Peter Place	Ventura	CA
115 Beeghly Ranch (including Verona & Coventry	Pkwy Dr. & Collector 2 st.	Yolo	CA

Community Name	Address or Location Description	County (or City)	
116 Stonehaven (also known as Woodland Commerce)	Kincheloe Ct. & Wintun Dr.	Yolo	CA
117 Woodland 140/ Willow Bend	Pkwy Dr. & Collector 1 st.	Yolo	CA
118 Briar Creek (including Gardens, Courtyards)	Bailey Ave. & West Extension of North Avenue, Lompoc	Santa Barbara	CA
119 High Point	10089 & 10090 Granby Drive, Commerce City	Adams	CO
120 Sage Creek (including Ash Meadows)	128th/129th & 130th Avenue & Leyden Street, Thornton	Adams	CO
121 The Villages	429 Mt. Cameron Court, Brighton	Adams	CO
122 Murphy Creek	1245 S. Coolidge Circle / South Gun Club Road & East Mississ	Arapahoe	CO
123 Parkview	598 Mobile Place, Aurora	Arapahoe	CO
124 Wheatlands	Smoky Hill Rd & E-470, Aurora	Arapahoe	CO
125 Rue 32	32nd & Blake, Denver	Denver	CO
126 Castle Oaks	Founders Parkway & Crimson Sky, Castle Rock	Douglas	CO
127 Crystal Valley Ranch Filing #5	Loop Road and Journeys End, Castle Rock	Douglas	CO
128 Fellowship	4739 South Coors Court, Morrison	Jefferson	CO
129 Trails of Tuscany/Park Place	95th Avenue & Westminster Blvd., Westminster	Jefferson	CO
130 Blackbird Knolls, 2nd Subdivision	1404 Katie Drive; 14th Street SW/Country Road 21, Loveland	Larimar	CO
131 Linden Park	2045 Fossil Creek Parkway, Fort Collins	Larimar	CO
132 Lind Property	NE of CR 11 & CR 52, Fort Collins	Larimer	CO
133 Liberty Ranch	13712 to 13716 Wrangler Way, Longmont Area	Weld	CO
134 Ellis Point	Off Holts Landing Road	Sussex	DE
135 Ridings at Rehoboth	Beaver Dam Road	Sussex	DE
136 Seagrass Plantation	Irons Lane	Sussex	DE
137 Riverwood (including Myakka Point)	Clubhouse Dr. and Riverwood, Port Charlotte	Charlotte	FL
138 Sawgrass Point	Rivershore & Brookville Rd., Port Charlotte	Charlotte	FL
139 Amberwood	Town Center Boulevard	Clay	FL
140 Carrington Place	Marsh Hawk Lane	Clay	FL
141 Jennings Point at Oakleaf Plantation	Intersection of Oakleaf Parkway and Plantation Oaks Blvd.	Clay	FL
142 Lake Ridge Villas North	2121 Town Center Boulevard	Clay	FL
143 Lely (including Aiden Woods & Players Cove)	Grand Lely Dr. & Celeste Dr. and Wildflower Way, Lely Resort Hwy 41, Naples	Collier	FL
144 Madison Park	Radio Rd. & Davis Blvd., Naples	Collier	FL
145 The Quarry	3600 ft east of Immokalee Rd and CR-951 intersection, Naples	Collier	FL
146 Twin Eagles (including Grand Arbor)	11429 Immokall Rd., Naples	Collier	FL
147 Marineland	Marineland, St. Augustine, FL	Flagler	FL
148 Palm Coast Resort	Harborside Inn & Marina	Flagler	FL
149 Tidelands	Tidelands - Village PUD Phase II	Flagler	FL
150 Harvest Creek Village	Progress Blvd & Falkenburg Rd	Hillsborough	FL
151 Hawks Point	1-1/2 miles west of I-75 on 19th Ave NE	Hillsborough	FL
152 Magnolia Park	NE corner of Progress and Falkenburg Rd. and Median of Falkenburg Rd, between Causeway Blvd & Progress Blvd	Hillsborough	FL
153 South Shore Falls	U.S. Highway 41 South of Miller Mac Road	Hillsborough	FL
154 Stonebrier	Off Sunlake Blvd North of Lutz Lake Fern Rd. W	Hillsborough	FL
155 Triple Creek	Balm Riverview Rd & Big Bend Rd	Hillsborough	FL
156 Northlake	Kings Hwy. and 57th Place, Vero Beach	Indian River	FL
157 Provence Bay	Indian River Blvd and 12th Ave., Vero Beach	Indian River	FL
158 Woodfield	66th Ave. and 26th Street, Vero Beach	Indian River	FL
159 Lake Denham	US27, North of CR33	Lake	FL
160 Martins Grove	Dead River Rd.	Lake	FL
161 Sullivan Ranch	30135 Roud Lake Rd	Lake	FL
162 The Preserve at Sunrise (also known as Lakeside at Sunrise PUD)	Villa City Rd and Lucy Lee Rd	Lake	FL
163 Emerson Square	Emerson Square Blvd. & US 41, Ft. Myers	Lee	FL
164 Hawthorne	River Rock Blvd. & Yorkstone Dr., Bonita Springs	Lee	FL
165 Novella	Benicia Blvd. & Bonita Beach Rd., Bonita Springs	Lee	FL
166 Plantation (including Bridgetown & Somerset)	Section 27 Township 44S Range 25E; 12811 Treeline Ave., Ft. Myers	Lee	FL
167 Veranda (including Lakeview & Pebblebrook)	Veranda Blvd and Lakeview Isles, and Pebblebrook Point Circle and Veranda Blvd, Ft. Myers	Lee	FL
168 Crossing Creek	44th Avenue East, Bradenton	Manatee	FL
169 Lakeridge Falls	4320 Kariba Lake Terrace, Sarasota	Manatee	FL
170 Sand Trail	Sand Trail Way and Florida Turnpike	Martin	FL
171 Eagles Hammock (also known as Waterford Chase East)	South of State Rt 50 and west of Avalon park BLVD	Orange	FL
172 Emerson Park	Ocoee Apopka Road / S. R. 429	Orange	FL
173 Ingram Trails	NW corner of Clarcona Ocoee Rd and Ingram Rd	Orange	FL
174 Millenium Parc (also known as Timmarron Townhomes)	Corner of Millenia Blvd and John Young Parkway	Orange	FL
175 Montacino (permitted as Enclave at Maitland)	Maitland Blvd and Hope Rd	Orange	FL
176 Southmeadow	Town Center Blvd and Orange Ave.	Orange	FL
177 Waterford Trails	Sunflower Trail and Avalon Park Blvd	Orange	FL
178 Oakwater	Old Lake Wilson Rd south of SR192	Osceola	FL

	Community Name	Address or Location Description	County (or City)	
179	Ashford Place	Aloma Ave. & Tuskawilla Rd.	Oviedo	FL
180	Bayhill Estates	Stonewall Drive and Rockledge View Drive, West Palm Beach	Palm Beach	FL
181	Canterbury Place	Indian Creek Parkway and Military Trail, Jupiter	Palm Beach	FL
182	Lanier - Castellina	SR-7 and Pierson Road, Wellington, FL	Palm Beach	FL
183	Oakmont Estates	Pierson Road and Fairlane Farms Rd., Wellington	Palm Beach	FL
184	Sea Plum	425 Indian Creek Parkway, Jupiter	Palm Beach	FL
185	Sunterra	5850 Belvedere Road, West Palm Beach, FL	Palm Beach	FL
186	Ashley Pines	State Road 54 & Smith Road	Pasco	FL
187	Fountain Park (also known as Arnwine Properties)	Mount Olive Rd and SR 33 in Polk City	Polk	FL
188	Magnolia Ridge	Corner of Evenhouse Rd and Lake Swoop.	Polk	FL
189	Ashley Oaks (also known as Cedar Grove)	Haberland Blvd., North Port	Sarasota	FL
190	Cypress Falls	Panacia Blvd., North Port	Sarasota	FL
191	Stonehaven	Clark Rd & Fielding W., Sarasota	Sarasota	FL
192	Venetian Falls	Center Rd & Jackson, Venice	Sarasota	FL
193	Villages at Pinetree	Palmer Blvd. & Tatum Rd., Sarasota	Sarasota	FL
194	Heritage Park (aka Wagners Curve)	Highway 434, Winter Springs	Seminole	FL
195	Legacy Park	Located on Lake Drive in Legacy Park PUD	Seminole	FL
196	Sterling Meadows	Corner of SR46 and SR415	Seminole	FL
197	Sutton Place	Pearl Lake Causeway and Alden Parkway	Seminole	FL
198	The Villas at Chase Groves	Old Lake Wilson Rd & Casa Verde Blvd in Lake Mary	Seminole	FL
199	Timicuan Townhomes	186 Timacuan Boulevard	Seminole	FL
200	Walden Chase	SR434 and Park Rd	Seminole	FL
201	Cypress Trace	US 1 and Racetrack Road	St. Johns	FL
202	Willowcove at Nocatee	US1 and CR 210	St. Johns	FL
203	Palm Breezes Club	Orange Avenue and Florida Turnpike	St. Lucie	FL
204	New Smyrna Beach	Mission Bay - Old Mission Rd/Eslinger Road	Volusia	FL
205	Hamilton Grove	Pooler Parkway	Chatham	GA
206	Southbridge	Southbridge Blvd.	Chatham	GA
207	The Magnolias at Ridgewalk	857 Society Ct., Woodstock	Cobb	GA
208	Cobblestone @ Brookhaven	2132 Cobblestone Circle	Dekalb	GA
209	Danbury Parc	1601 Danbury Parc Place	Dekalb	GA
210	Ansley at Pilgrim Mill	2705 Wynbrook Bend	Forsyth	GA
211	Maristone	4595 Shiloh Springs Rd	Forsyth	GA
212	Seven Branches (including Silver Leaf)	4725 Silver Leaf Dr.	Forsyth	GA
213	Cascades	3515 Benjamin E. Mayes Drive	Fulton	GA
214	Mabry Park	4921 Weathervane Drive	Fulton	GA
215	Wavery Township	Old Alabama Road	Fulton	GA
216	Bentwood at Sugarloaf	2817 Staunton Drive	Gwinnett	GA
217	Brookfield Chase	3861 Kingsley Park Lane, Duluth	Gwinnett	GA
218	Cresswell	2780 Royston Drive	Gwinnett	GA
219	Kedron Park	3458 Kiveton Dr.	Gwinnett	GA
220	The Estates at Nash Lake	3375 Preservation Circle	Gwinnett	GA
221	Koolina Beach Villas	Waialii Place	Kapolei	HI
222	Koolina Hillside Homes	Aliinui Place	Kapolei	HI
223	Ko Olina Kai	Off Koio Dr.	Kapolei, Oahu	HI
224	Haliikahi Beach Homes	69-1029 Nawahine Place	Wakoloa	HI
225	Copper Springs	North of Water Road, East of Nestler Road	Kane	IL
226	Shadow Hill	North of South Street, East of Nestler Road	Kane	IL
227	West Ridge Village	Nesler Road @ Route 20	Kane	IL
228	Summerfield	Larry Power Dr., 1/2 mile west of Cardinal Drive	Kankakee	IL
229	Bristol Bay	Route 47 and Galena Road	Kendall	IL
230	Sable Ridge	West of Ridge Road, North of Black Road	Kendall	IL
231	Summerfield	Wildy Road @ Ridge Road	Kendall	IL
232	Midland Club	4591 Sawgrass Blvd	Lake	IL
233	Rivers Edge	On Airport Rd East of Hwy 67	Madison	IL
234	Morgan Hill	4331 Savoy Lane	McHenry	IL
235	Sweetwater	Ware Road & Raffle Road	McHenry	IL
236	Forest Cove at Valley Lakes	2219 W. Cascade Circle	Round Lake	IL
237	Green Mount Manor	Greenmount Rd North IL 161 - 163	St. Clair	IL
238	Milburn Estates	Milburn School Rd @ Milburn Estates Dr	St. Clair	IL
239	Reunion	Rt 15 and Westhaven School Rd	St. Clair	IL
240	Sullivan Farms	Frank Scott Pkwy and Sullivan Dr	St. Clair	IL
241	Timberbrook	North County Rd	St. Clair	IL
242	Westhaven Meadows	Illinois St (Rt 159) and Maple Dr	St. Clair	IL
243	Willow Walk	Along Sullivan Rd in Swansea, IL	St. Clair	IL
244	Breckenridge	River Road @ Vertin Blvd	Will	IL
245	Brookstone Springs	East of Route 52, South of Smith Road	Will	IL
246	Hampton Glen	South of Theodore St., West of IL Route 59	Will	IL

	Community Name	Address or Location Description	County (or City)	
247	Kipling Estates	Mound Road @ River Road	Will	IL
248	Hunter Glen	11715 Anton Dr. Unit 1, Zionsville	Boone	IN
249	Archer Estates	11643 Archer Lane, Fishers	Hamilton	IN
250	Bridgewater Club	15304 Mystic Rock Drive, Carmel	Hamilton	IN
251	Deer Path	12488 Deerview Dr., Noblesville	Hamilton	IN
252	Intracoastal at Geist	14963 Newburyport Drive, Fishers	Hamilton	IN
253	Limestone Springs	13266 Komatite Way, Unit 1, Fishers	Hamilton	IN
254	Stony Creek	17174 Long Creek Drive, Noblesville	Hamilton	IN
255	The Townhomes at Fishers Pointe	8481 Fishers Center Drive, Fishers	Hamilton	IN
256	The Villages at Geist	104th Street between Ohio Road and Florida Road	Hamilton	IN
257	Traditions on the Monon	85 9th Street NW, Carmel	Hamilton	IN
258	Emerald Springs	8609 N. Commonview Dr., McCordsville	Hancock	IN
259	Meridian East at Springhurst	671 Melrose Court, Greenfield	Hancock	IN
260	Bersot Crossing	2361 Hanover Road, Brownsburg	Hendricks	IN
261	Lake Ridge	1265 Wild Ridge Boulevard, Brownsburg	Hendricks	IN
262	The Settlement	2060 Buttonbush Dr., Plainfield	Hendricks	IN
263	Harvest Grove	3031 Harvest Grove Lane, Bargersville	Johnson	IN
264	Bells Run	4542 Ringstead Way, Indianapolis	Marion	IN
265	Chessington Grove	7642 Ballybay Dr., Indianapolis	Marion	IN
266	Villas @ Franklin Crossing	4906 Franklin Villas Drive, Indianapolis	Marion	IN
267	Willow Springs	2376 The Springs Dr., Indianapolis	Marion	IN
268	Carrolls Creek (Waugh Chapel)	Waugh Chapel Road @ MD Route 3	Anne Arundel	MD
269	Russett PUD Phase III Parcel 12A		Anne Arundel	MD
270	South River Colony, Parcel B	217 Galewood Drive & 209 Galewood Drive, Edgewater	Anne Arundel	MD
271	Blundon Estates, Parcel B		Baltimore	MD
272	Avalon Phase I (aka Avalon 60 Phase I)	off Mill Hill Road	Charles	MD
273	Avalon Phase II (aka Avalon 60 Phase II)	off Mill Hill Road	Charles	MD
274	Avalon West	off Mill Hill Road	Charles	MD
275	Riverwatch at Indian Head		Charles	MD
276	Belvedere Glen		Montgomery	MD
277	Blackburn Village		Montgomery	MD
278	Fairfield @ Germantown	19430 Germantown Road	Montgomery	MD
279	Hidden Creek Land Bay Three	Occidental @ Goshen, City of Gaithersburg	Montgomery	MD
280	Highlands @ Clarksburg	Frederick and Stringtown Road	Montgomery	MD
281	Kensington Orchids		Montgomery	MD
282	Leesboro	11601 Georgia Ave	Montgomery	MD
283	Clinton Gardens	Woodyard Road	Prince Georges	MD
284	Lakeview @ Brandywine	Accokeek Road	Prince Georges	MD
285	Marwood	Goldenwood Court - Marwood Drive & Marlboro Pike	Prince Georges	MD
286	Summerfield @Morgan Station	E/W side of Garrett Morgan Blvd	Prince Georges	MD
287	Town Center @ Camp Springs	South of Suitland Parkway	Prince Georges	MD
288	Broad Marsh	69 and 70th Street, Ocean City	Worcester	MD
289	Decatur Farms	Decatur Street and Tripoli Street, Berlin	Worcester	MD
290	Riddle Farm	MD. RT. 50 and RT. 589, Berlin	Worcester	MD
291	Seaside Village	Golf Course Road, Ocean City	Worcester	MD
292	Cole Creek Estates	E. Side of Morrish Rd., btw. Bristol & Lennon Rds, Swartz Creek	Genesee	MI
293	Autumn Woods	Highland Rd. W. of US-23, Hartland	Livingston	MI
294	Hampton Ridge I	4046 Kirkway Ct., Howell	Livingston	MI
295	Red Cedar Crossing	Van Buren Rd. W. of Fowlerville Road, Fowlerville	Livingston	MI
296	Woods of Forest Ridge	Latson Rd. S. of M-59, Howell	Livingston	MI
297	Elmhurst	W. Side of Saal Rd. S. of 19 Mile Rd., Sterling Hts.	Macomb	MI
298	Arbor Creek	Stewart Rd. W. of Telegraph Rd, Monroe	Monroe	MI
299	Country Club Village	Nawakwa Rd. E. of Rochester Rd, Rochester Hills	Oakland	MI
300	Forestbrook	N. Side of Hatchery Rd., btw. Airport & Crescent Lake Rd., Waterford	Oakland	MI
301	Fountain Park	East of Lochaven, N and S side of Elizabeth Lake Rd., Waterford	Oakland	MI
302	Golf Highlands at Waterstone	N. of Seymour Lake Rd., W. of Lapeer Road, Oxford	Oakland	MI
303	Long Lake Village	Ortonville Rd. N. of Seymour Lake Rd., Ortonville	Oakland	MI
304	Preserves of Meadowbrook	Off 8 Mile Rd. E. of I-275, Farmington Hills	Oakland	MI
305	Princeton Park	S. Side of 12 Mile Rd., N. of Inkster Rd., Southfield	Oakland	MI
306	Spring Haven (including Spring Haven Pointe & Spring Haven Villas)	Southfield Rd. btw 12 Mile & 12 Mile Rds., Southfield	Oakland	MI
307	Apen Ridge	S.E. corner of Munger and Textile Rds, Ypsilanti Twp.	Washtenaw	MI
308	Brookside	Geddes Rd. btw. Harris and Prospect, Superior Twp.	Washtenaw	MI
309	Meadowbrook	Arkona Rd. btw. Platt and Carpenter Rds., Milan	Washtenaw	MI
310	Thornton Farms	S. Side of Jackson Rd, W. of Parker Rd., Dexter	Washtenaw	MI

Community Name	Address or Location Description	County (or City)	State
311 Blue Heron Pointe	E. side of Platt Rd., S. of Michigan Ave (US 12), Pittsfield Twp.	Wayne	MI
312 Charter Oaks Village	S. Side of Goddard Rd.E. of Inkster Rd., Taylor	Wayne	MI
313 Chatterton Woodlands	Beck Rd. S. of Geddes Rd., Canton Twp.	Wayne	MI
314 Falkirk	Will Carleton Rd. 1.5 mi. E. of I-275, Huron Twp.	Wayne	MI
315 Highland Estates	Pennsylvania Rd. btw, Middlebelt & Inkster Rds, Romulus	Wayne	MI
316 Island Lakes at Midtown	N. Side of Goddard Rd., W. of Allen Rd., Taylor	Wayne	MI
317 Newberry Estates	Off Central Pkwy, N. of Ford Rd., E. of Newburgh, Westland	Wayne	MI
318 Timberline Meadows	S.W. corner of Pardee and Superior Pkwy, Taylor	Wayne	MI
319 Crescent Ponds	Intersection of TH 242 and University Avenue, Blaine	Anoka	MN
320 Estates of Silver Oaks (also known as Marigold Ponds)	Intersection of TH 47 and 160th Avenue, Ramsey	Anoka	MN
321 Glenn Meadows	Intersection of Lexington Avenue and 109th Avenue, Blaine	Anoka	MN
322 Legacy Creek	Intersection of Main Street and Legacy Creek Parkway, Blaine	Anoka	MN
323 Chavalle	Bavaria Road @ Grand Chavalle Parkway	Carver	MN
324 Glen at Spring Creek	Intersection of County Road 147 and White Pine Way, Carver	Carver	MN
325 Spring Creek	Intersection of US 212 and County Road 147, Carver	Carver	MN
326 Waterford	Intersection of TH 284 and Sparrow Road, Waconia	Carver	MN
327 Charleswood Crossing	Intersection of 195th Street East and Pilot Knob Road, Farmington	Dakota	MN
328 Cobblestone	Intersection of Pilot Knob Road and 160th Street West, Apple Valley	Dakota	MN
329 Meadows of Bloomfield	Intersection of Conemerra Trail and Autumn Path, Rosemount	Dakota	MN
330 Prairie Ridge	Intersection of 145th Street East and General Sieben Drive, Hastings	Dakota	MN
331 Delgany	Intersection of CR 30 and CR 101, Maple Grove	Hennepin	MN
332 Emery Village	Intersection of US 169 and 117th Avenue, Champlin	Hennepin	MN
333 Gleason Farms	17923 and 18023 Bass Lake Road; SW Quadrant of Bass Lake Road & Lawndale Ave, Maple Grove	Hennepin	MN
334 Wickford Village	Intersection of TH 610 and Regent Avenue, Brooklyn Park	Hennepin	MN
335 Forest Knoll	Intersection of 48th Street SE and Saint Bridgets Road, Rochester	Olmstead	MN
336 Park Meadows	Intersection of Valley View Road and Canterbury Road, Shakopee	Scott	MN
337 Riverside Fields	Intersection of Crossings Boulevard and County Road 18, Shakopee	Scott	MN
338 Baileys Arbor	Intersection of Bailey Road and Cottage Grove Drive, Woodbury	Washington	MN
339 Heritage Ponds	Intersection of Elmcrest Avenue and Heritage Parkway, Hugo	Washington	MN
340 Stonemill Farms	Intersection of Settlers Ridge Parkway and Walnut Lane, Lot 5, block 4	Washington	MN
341 Settlers Pointe	Intersection of County Road 147 and Harvest Trail, Buffalo	Wright	MN
342 Providence	Mcnutt Rd @ School Rd	Jefferson	MO
343 Regency Woods	Old Lemay Ferry Rd @ Seckman Rd	Jefferson	MO
344 Crooked Creek	Adelhardt Rd past Pear Ct	Lincoln	MO
345 Brighton Park	Muegge Rd and Fountain View Rd; Muegge Rd and Old Muegge Rd	St. Charles	MO
346 Carlton Glen	Carlton Glen Pkwy @ Hwy Z	St. Charles	MO
347 Fox Ridge	Mexico Rd @ Walnut Forest Rd	St. Charles	MO
348 Manors at Crimson Oaks	Prospect Rd @ Duello Rd	St. Charles	MO
349 Preston Woods	Preston Woods Ln	St. Charles	MO
350 Tysons Corner	SW corner of Bates and Henning Rd	St. Charles	MO
351 Ashton Woods	Eureka Allenton Rd @ Hunter Ford Rd	St. Louis	MO
352 Enclaves at Cherry Hills	Manchester Rd & Old Manchester Rd; Old Manchester Rd @ Cherry Hills Meadow Dr	St. Louis	MO
353 Meadowbrook Villas	Kehrs Mill Rd @ Meadowbrooke Dr	St. Louis	MO
354 Mill Ridge Villas	W. of Amiot Dr @ Creve Coeur Mill Rd	St. Louis	MO
355 River Breeze Estates	Susan Road @ Telegraph Rd	St. Louis	MO
356 Tapawingo on the Green	West watson @ Gary Player Drive	St. Louis	MO
357 Weatherby Place / Weatherby Manors	Shackelford & Emerald Creek Dr; at the Northern Terminus of Valley Brook Dr and Shorewood and East of Weatherby Place Subdivision	St. Louis	MO
358 Mayfield Farms Phases 1&2			MO
359 Beacon Townes	Hwy. 17 & Pilot House Dr.	Brunswick	NC
360 Meadowlands (includes Savannah Lakes)	Shingletree Rd. & Meadowlands Dr.	Brunswick	NC

Community ID	Community Name	Address or Location Description	County (or City)	State
361	Rivermist	Hwy.211 & J. Swain Blvd.	Brunswick	NC
362	Cornerstone Park	8301 Parkstone Dr.	City of Raleigh	NC
363	Sandpiper Bay	7496 Royal Aberdeen Ct.	City of Sunset Beach	NC
364	Providence Glen	8305 Avanti Drive	City of Waxhaw	NC
365	Creekway	4496 Alexandria Rd.	City of Winston-Salem	NC
366	Ganyard Farms	Intersection of NC 98/Ganyard Farm Way, Durham	Durham	NC
367	Grandale	Lyons Farm Drive, Durham	Durham	NC
368	Stillwood	Intersection of Vestavia Drive/Carpenter Road, Durham	Durham	NC
369	Stratford Lakes	Intersection of MLK Parkway & Fayetteville St. (Northwest Quadrant), Durham	Durham	NC
370	Vernon Farms	Linville Road	Forsyth	NC
371	Wyngate Village	Romara Drive	Forsyth	NC
372	Willow Creek	Armstrong Park/Hudson Blvd.	Gaston	NC
373	Wyngate	Intersection of E. Lyon Station Road/ Shining Water, Creedmoor	Granville	NC
374	Barrington Estates	Deep River Road	Guilford	NC
375	Willowridge	Perth Place	Guilford	NC
376	Bear Lake Reserve	Bear Lake, River Township Tract A-C	Jackson	NC
377	Magnolia Village	Intersection of NC HWY 42/Brookhaven Drive, Clayton	Johnston	NC
378	The Pointe	Intersection of Cleveland School Road/SR1010, Cleveland Township	Johnston	NC
379	Buckleigh	3502 Rocky River Rd., Charlotte	Mecklenburg	NC
380	Ardrey Chase	17415 Marvin Road	Mecklenburg	NC
381	Matthews Grove	2039 McKee Road	Mecklenburg	NC
382	Mcintyre	Lakeview Road	Mecklenburg	NC
383	Rosedale	Ranson Road	Mecklenburg	NC
384	Stone Creek Ranch (including Cato West)	Tom Short Road and Bryant Farms Road	Mecklenburg	NC
385	The Bridges	7000 Endhaven Lane	Mecklenburg	NC
386	Weddington Meadows	Weddington Road @ Walker Road	Mecklenburg	NC
387	Woodbury	Albemarle and Cedarfield Road	Mecklenburg	NC
388	Collington Farms	Intersection of Ben Wilson Road/Gatwick Way, Mebane	Orange Alamance	NC
389	Fieldstone Farm	Rocky River Road and Poplin Road	Union	NC
390	Millbridge	Kensington Road	Union	NC
391	Wesley Oaks (Newell-Billy Howey Road)	Billy Howey Road	Union	NC
392	Amber Ridge	Intersection of Varcroft Road/Mailwood Drive, Knightdale	Wake	NC
393	Churchill	Intersection of Old Faison Road/Churchill Glen Blvd, Knightdale	Wake	NC
394	Greenbriar	6621 Old Wake Forest Road, Raleigh	Wake	NC
395	Harrington Point	11301 Leesville Road, Raleigh	Wake	NC
396	Highland Creek	8501 Louisburg Road, Raleigh	Wake	NC
397	Landings @ Heritage North	Intersection of Dimock Way/Heritage Hills Way, Wake Forest	Wake	NC
398	Peyton Hall	4500 Wedgewood Drive, Raleigh	Wake	NC
399	Sheldon Place	Intersection of New Rand Road/Belmont Ridge Drive, Garner	Wake	NC
400	Stone Creek Village	Intersection of Carpenter Upchurch Road/High House Road, Cary	Wake	NC
401	Sumerlyn	Intersection of Sumerlyn Drive/Battle Bridge Road, Raleigh	Wake	NC
402	Town Hall Commons / Town Hall Gardens	Intersection of Liberty Rose Drive/ McCrimmon Parkway, Morrisville	Wake	NC
403	Town Hall Terraces	Davis Drive @ Mckrimmon Parkway	Wake	NC
404	Weston Oaks	Weston PUD 6B (Norwell Road), Cary	Wake	NC
405	Westover	Northwest Corner of Davis Drive/Morrisville Parkway, Cary	Wake	NC
406	South Peak Resort	Crooked Mountain Road	Grafton	NH
407	Essex Park	235, 261-275 Franklin Ave, Belleville	Essex	NJ
408	City Homes at Bayside	Along Custer Ave, No. of Kennedy Blvd, Jersey City	Hudson	NJ
409	Renaissance at West Windsor	Route 35 (Old Trenton Road) Westbound between Rte 571 & Village Rd, West Windsor	Mercer	NJ
410	Crossings at Monroe	Cranbury Station Road, Monroe	Monmouth	NJ
411	Freehold Pointe	Route 79 & East Freehold Road, Freehold Township	Monmouth	NJ
412	Renaissance at Colts Neck Crossing	Colts Neck Road & Route 33 Block 182, Howell Township	Monmouth	NJ
413	Renaissance at Monroe	State Highway Route 33, Monroe	Monmouth	NJ
414	Rennaissance-Cranbury Crossing	Cranbury Station Road, Monroe	Monmouth	NJ
415	Village at Chapel Hill	Route 35 North Middletown	Monmouth	NJ
416	Woods at Monroe	693 Spotswood-Englishtown Road, Monroe	Monmouth	NJ

Community Name	Address or Location Description	County or City	
417 Grandview at Kinnelon	South Glen Road, Kinnelon	Morris	NJ
418 City Homes at Creekside Manor	Roselle Blvd Dr. Mill Ridge Rd, Secaucus	Passaic	NJ
419 Windmere Grove	Wyndhurst Dr. and Dey Rd.	Plainsboro Township	NJ
420 Washington Meadows	43 Sloan Ave.	Washington Township	NJ
421 Presidio	Corner of Chico and Morris	Bernalillo	NM
422 The Meadows at Anderson Hills	Meadows at Anderson Hills Ph 1, 2, & 5.	Bernalillo	NM
423 Alegria @ The Orchards	NM 528 and Santiago Way	Sandoval	NM
424 Rancho Oro & Plata	Unser and Cabezon Blvd	Sandoval	NM
425 Sagewood	Northern Meadows Unit 17	Sandoval	NM
426 Toscana	Cabezon Blvd	Sandoval	NM
427 Colores Del Sol	Corner of Aqua Fria and South Meadows	Santa Fe	NM
428 San Isidro Village	Rufina Street	Santa Fe	NM
429 Villa Sonata	Corner of Governor Miles and Richards. Santa Fe.	Santa Fe	NM
430 Sundance at Huning Ranch	NMSR 6 North of Los Lunas	Valencia	NM
431 TrailSide (Huning Ranch)	Corner of Sundance and Street B. Los Lunas NM.	Valencia	NM
432 Ardiente	Carla Ann Rd. & N. Pecos, N. Las Vegas	Clark	NV
433 Giavana	SE Corner Ann Rd & Pecos, N. Las Vegas	Clark	NV
434 Horizon Park	Alexander Rd & Simmons St., N. Las Vegas	Clark	NV
435 Mesa Verde	Intersection of Allen & Colton St., N. Las Vegas	Clark	NV
436 Montecatini at Lake Las Vegas	Lake Las Vegas Pkwy, Henderson	Clark	NV
437 Nelson Ranch	Allante Pkwy & Grand Teton Dr., Las Vegas	Clark	NV
438 Rose Lake	SE Corner Pecos Rd & Tropical Pkwy, N. Las Vegas	Clark	NV
439 Rose Lake 20	Pecos Rd. & tropical Pkwy, N. Las Vegas	Clark	NV
440 Runvee Hobart West	SE Intersection of Pecos Rd. and Tropical Pkwy, Las Vegas	Clark	NV
441 Saint Rose 38	St. Rose Pkwy & Spencer, Henderson	Clark	NV
442 Tropical & Lawrence	SE Intersection of Tropical & Lawrence, N. Las Vegas	Clark	NV
443 Urban Village	Las Vegas Blvd. & Pyle, Las Vegas	Clark	NV
444 Bella Vista	South Meadows Pkwy/Veterans Pkwy, Reno	Washoe	NV
445 Chianti D'Andrea	2841 Ineisa Ct., Sparks	Washoe	NV
446 Damonte Ranch Village 16 (aka Rio Bravo) & Village 18 (Copper Creek)	Rio Wrangler Pkwy, Reno	Washoe	NV
447 Desert Highland	4495 Desert Highlands Dr., Sparks	Washoe	NV
448 Governors Square	Roop Street, Carson City	Washoe	NV
449 Miramonte (including Colinas, Miraposa, Lasenda)	Vista Heights Dr., Sparks	Washoe	NV
450 Royal Sage Unit 5	2895 Royal Crown Ct., Reno	Washoe	NV
451 Sapphire Ridge	Corner of 7th and Robb, Reno	Washoe	NV
452 Silver Shores, Turtle Creek, Site 9	7489 Deveron Dr., Reno	Washoe	NV
453 Silver Terrace (aka Afton Leaf)	O Keyboard Terrace, Reno	Washoe	NV
454 Silver Terrace II - Phases 1 & 2 (aka Brookdale)	O Moyo Blvd., Reno	Washoe	NV
455 Sorrento	2550 Anqua Way, Sparks	Washoe	NV
456 Turtle Creek II (aka Turtle Creek West)	Silver Lake Rd. & Red Rock, Reno	Washoe	NV
457 Wildcreek	McCarran/El Rancho	Washoe	NV
458 Golf Village	Rutherford Rd. / Sawmill Pkwy	Delaware	OH
459 McCammon Estates	2500 S of E Orange Rd; 500 W of Walker Woods	Delaware	OH
460 Sheffield Park	Worthington Rd. & Jaycox Rd.	Delaware	OH
461 Wiltshire	2500 S of E Orange Rd; 500 W of Walker Woods	Delaware	OH
462 Canal Highlands	Lehman Rd / Bowen Rd.	Franklin	OH
463 Claybrooke Crossing	Haughn Rd. / Orders Rd.	Franklin	OH
464 Highland Pointe Condominiums	101 Northwoods Blvd.	Franklin	OH
465 Royal Elm	Havens Corner Rd. / Waggoner Rd.	Franklin	OH
466 Wyndham Ridge	Parsons Ave. / Rathmill Rd.	Franklin	OH
467 Rogerfield	3203 Sabo Lane	City of West Linn	OR
468 Chinook Crossing (Cascade Meadows)	34140 Elm St.	Columbia	OR
469 Liday (Chinook Crossing West)	34035 & 34031 SE Elm St.	Columbia	OR
470 Eddy -So. Nottingham Woods	1932 SE Troutdale Rd., Salem	Marion	OR
471 Nottingham Woods	2007 Baxter Rd SE, Salem	Marion	OR
472 Asakawa (Riverbend)	27731 SE Sweetbriar Rd.	Multnomah	OR
473 Estates at Riverbend West	1932 SE Troutdale Rd.	Multnomah	OR
474 Parks @ Kelly Creek (Springwater)	Chase Rd & 282nd	Multnomah	OR
475 Ocean Highlands	Hwy #131 & Bilyeu Ave	Tillamook	OR
476 Bethany Lake Estates	18650 NW West Union Rd	Washington	OR
477 Cooper Mountain Estates	18781 & 18655 SW Gassner Rd.	Washington	OR
478 Laurel Oaks	5200 SE Alexander, 3250 SE Brookwood, 43578 & 43566 SW Hiatt Road, 24175 SW Davis Rd	Washington	OR
479 Meadow Oaks	3535 SW 234th & 23805 / 23925 SW Davis Rd.	Washington	OR

Community Name	Address or Location Description	County (or City)	State
480 Oakhurst	3720 & 3760 SE River Rd	Washington	OR
481 Baynard Park	Hampton Parkway	Beaufort	SC
482 Parkside	Hampton Parkway	Beaufort	SC
483 Pinecrest	Buckwalter Parkway	Beaufort	SC
484 Shadow Moss	Hwy 170	Beaufort	SC
485 Cain Crossing	Clements Ferry Rd	Berkeley	SC
486 Cane Bay	Highway 176	Berkeley	SC
487 Liberty Hall (includes Waterford & Wedgewood)	Liberty Hall Road	Berkeley	SC
488 Shelring	St Thomas Island Drive	Berkeley	SC
489 Weatherstone	Sheep Island Road	Berkeley	SC
490 Carolina Bay (includes Essex)	US Highway 17; Glen McConnell Pkwy	Charleston	SC
491 Summer Park	Lincolnville Road	Charleston	SC
492 Hamilton Park	105 Meeker Ct. or Columbia Ave.	City of Irmo	SC
493 Parkhill Place (Northwoods)	Interstate 26, Highway 52, Greenridge Rd.	City of North Charleston	SC
494 McKewn	Patriot Blvd	Dorchester	SC
495 Woodlands	Dorchester Road; Old Fort Road	Dorchester	SC
496 Linksbrook (includes Barony; Colony)	South side of Prince Creek Parkway	Georgetown	SC
497 Barefoot Resort (includes Clearwater Bay; Heron Bay; Willow Bend; Brookstone/Sweetbriar; Longbridge; Parkhill)	West of Highway 17, on Catalina Drive	Horry	SC
498 Berkshire Forest (includes Crestwood; Cambridge; Sutton; Heatherston; Stafford Row; Windsor Park)	West of River Oaks Drive at August Plantation Boulevard	Horry	SC
499 Heritage Preserve (includes Oaks)	Hwy.90 & Three Oak Lane	Horry	SC
500 Palmetto Glen (includes Pinecrest)	Tibton Circle & Palmetto Glen Dr.	Horry	SC
501 Prince Creek (includes Coldstream Cove)	TPC Boulevard & River Rock Dr.	Horry	SC
502 Wellington	Palmetto Pointe Boulevard & Olde Towne Way	Horry	SC
503 Wildwing (including Kiskadee)	Sanctuary Boulevard	Horry	SC
504 Amhurst Phase 1 @ Berkshire Village	Brentford Place	Horry (Myrtle Beach)	SC
505 Edenmoor	South of Jim Wilson and Bolton Road	Lancaster	SC
506 Camden Creek at Allston Plantation	66 Hartley Place	Pawleys Island	SC
507 Taravella (Spicewood)	1300 Block of Gold Hill Road	York	SC
508 Timberlake	Hwy 55 E.	York	SC
509 Willowmet Subdivision	9754 Concord Rd.	City of Brentwood	TN
510 Brookview	Ewing Drive at Gwynnwood Drive	Davidson	TN
511 Carter Property	East of Concord Place Subdivision, NE of Nolensville Rd at Autumn Crossing Way	Davidson	TN
512 Centex-Cone Property	Brick Church Pike, Nashville	Davidson	TN
513 Concord Place	Northside of Nolensville Road, West of Concord Road	Davidson	TN
514 Lakeside Cove at Percy Priest	Hobson Pike at Smith Springs Pkwy	Davidson	TN
515 Oak Hill Townhomes	McMurray Drive	Davidson	TN
516 Provincetown	Old Franklin Pike	Davidson	TN
517 Blackman Farm	State Rt 96/Franklin Road approximately 1.2 miles west of the intersection of Interstate 24 and State Road 96	Rutherford	TN
518 Creekside at Station Camp Creek	Lower Station Camp Creek Road and Long Hollow Pike	Sumner	TN
519 Bridgemill at Providence (aka Centex-Providence)	Staford Dr. at Bridge Mill Dr., approx. 1 mile E. of S. Mt. Juliet Rd. at I-40	Wilson	TN
520 Spence Creek	Hwy 109, north of Hwy 70 just past Old Laguado Rd	Wilson	TN
521 Bridgewood	S&SW of Jack Barnes Ave. & Bridle Dr.	Bell	TX
522 Echo Village	5304 Whistlestop Dr.	Bell	TX
523 Skipcha Mountain	S&SW of the intersection of US 190 & FM2410	Bell	TX
524 The Ridge	Comanche Gap & Comanche Ridge; SE of FM2410 & Comanche Gap Rd.	Bell	TX
525 Trimmier Estates & Meadows of Trimmier	SW of the intersection of Trimmier Rd. & James Lp.	Bell	TX
526 Whiterock Estates	Stagecoach Rd. & Shawn Dr.	Bell	TX
527 Windmill Farms	NW of the intersection of FM2305 & SH317	Bell	TX
528 Hanover Cove	FM Hwy 1604 & N Seguin Rd; NE Intersection of Hanover Cove & Fisherman Port	Bexar	TX
529 Lost Creek	25400 Old Fredericksburg Rd.; North of Intersection of IH-10 and FM 3351	Bexar	TX
530 Monticello Ranch	187 Tally Rd	Bexar	TX
531 Retama Springs	Northwest Intersection of Lookout Rd. and Retama Pkwy.	Bexar	TX
532 Rivermist (including Hills of Rivermist; Arbors of Rivermist)	1 mile E. of Bandera Rd on Prue Rd	Bexar	TX
533 Silver Oaks	Northeast of intersection FM 471 and FM 1560	Bexar	TX
534 Silverado Hills (including The Villas at Silverado Hills)	North Canyon Golf Rd.	Bexar	TX
535 The Park at University Hills	West Hausman Rd. .75 Miles from IH 10	Bexar	TX
536 The Villages at Bulverde (also Indian Springs)	Bulverde Rd. 1.9 Miles North of Evans Rd.	Bexar	TX
537 The Waters	102 Cove East, Horseshoe Bay, TX 78657	Burnet	TX

Community Name	Address or Location Description	County (City)	TX
538 New Territory	1046 Jason's Bend	City of Sugarland	TX
539 Artesia (including The Parks, The Falls & The Vistas)	1416 Candler Drive, Prosper	Collin	TX
540 Bear Creek Ranch	1702 Chadwick Drive, Cedar Hill	Collin	TX
541 Birmingham Farms	608 Beau Drive, Wylie	Collin	TX
542 Cambridge Village	205 Joplin Drive, McKinney	Collin	TX
543 Creekside at Preston	12900 Kiltartan Drive, Frisco	Collin	TX
544 Eldorado West	2619 Powderhorn Drive & 2655 E FM-720, Little Elm	Collin	TX
545 Grand Heritage (Bear Creek)	275 San Jacinto Drive, Lavon	Collin	TX
546 Knolls of Frisco	12675 Tealsky, Frisco	Collin	TX
547 Woodbridge	North side Ranch Road, 0.5 miles west of Hwy 78	Collin	TX
548 Ames Meadows (also known as Anderson Farms)	2012 Godiva Street, Lancaster	Dallas	TX
549 La Villita	688 Arbol, Irving	Dallas	TX
550 Lakewood Townhomes	1600 Abrams Road, Dallas	Dallas	TX
551 Parkview at Addison (District A)	15570 Quorum Drive, Addison	Dallas	TX
552 The Hills at Tealwood	2505 Cornstock Dr., Mesquite	Dallas	TX
553 Harriet Creek Ranch	16448 Cowboy Trail, Justin	Denton	TX
554 Meridian (including Hidden Cove & Hidden Cove Estates)	652 Lake City Drive & 2800 Shoreline Way, Lewisville	Denton	TX
555 Wheeler Ridge	6005 English Manor Road, Denton	Denton	TX
556 Bradford Park	.8 miles S of Beechnut & W of Harlem Rd.	Fort Bend	TX
557 Cottonwood	Hawthorne Pasture Rd & Cottonwood School Rd.	Fort Bend	TX
558 Fieldstone	Morton Rd. and Farmer Rd.	Fort Bend	TX
559 Parkway Trails	Scanlin Rd and Curtis Crossing	Fort Bend	TX
560 Pointe West	24620 San Luis Pass Road, Galveston	Galveston	TX
561 Kensington Ranch	.94 Miles South FM 1518 From IH 35 along Savanna Way	Guadalupe	TX
562 Willow Bridge	1.2M East of IH 35 and Old Weiderstein Rd	Guadalupe	TX
563 2800 Polk	2800 Polk St., Houston	Harris	TX
564 Barkers Branch	Barkers Cypress Rd & Barkers Branch Rd.	Harris	TX
565 Clearwood Crossing	10431 Clearwood Crossing Blvd.	Harris	TX
566 Cypress Chase	Cypress N. Houston & Edenstone Dr.	Harris	TX
567 Cypress Landing	Mueschke Rd. & Tacoma Springs Dr.	Harris	TX
568 Grand Harbor (including The Lakes; The Estates; Harbor Shores)	Katy Fort Bend Rd & Grand Harbor Dr.	Harris	TX
569 King Lakes	Greenbush Rd. & Katy-Gaston Rd.	Harris	TX
570 Memorial Springs	Spring Cypress & Memorial Springs Blvd.	Harris	TX
571 Morton Ranch	Morton Rd. & Mason Rd.	Harris	TX
572 Spring Terrace	Kuykendahl Rd & Mossey Terrace Ln	Harris	TX
573 Tuscan Lakes	SH 96 & Tuscan Lakes Blvd.	Harris	TX
574 Vintage	Compaq Center Dr. & Chasewood Park Dr.	Harris	TX
575 Yaupon Ranch	529 & Greenhouse Rd	Harris	TX
576 Garlic Creek West	South of the intersection of FM967 & Remuda Trail	Hays	TX
577 Green Meadows	NE of the intersection of CR 119 & CR 133	Hays	TX
578 Southlake Ranch	4097 Goforth Rd.	Hays	TX
579 Hillside Park at Wakefield	FM 1187 @ Alsbury Blvd	Johnson	TX
580 Wakefield (including Wakefield Heights & Villages of Wakefield)	1237 & 1429 Tarpon Court, Burleson	Johnson	TX
581 Kendall Creek Estates	Northwest corner of Scenic Loop Rd. and Vallery Lane	Kendall	TX
582 Spring Meadow	503 Sundrop Drive, Fate	Rockwall	TX
583 Creekside Estates (also known as Parkview)	8809 Elk Creek, Fort Worth	Tarrant	TX
584 Deer Valley	217 Chalk Mountain Drive, Fort Worth	Tarrant	TX
585 Harris Ridge	803 White Fields Way, Arlington	Tarrant	TX
586 Horseshoe Bend	5003 Steeplechase Ct., Grand Prairie	Tarrant	TX
587 Parks at Boat Club (LakePointe)	5812 Deck House Road, Fort Worth	Tarrant	TX
588 Presidio Village (Reata Ranch)	2144 Burnside Drive, Fort Worth	Tarrant	TX
589 Timberland	4508 Laceybark, Keller	Tarrant	TX
590 Villages at Woodland Springs	Timberland Blvd @ Woods Edge Trail	Tarrant	TX
591 Westview (Texas at Henderson)	904 Lexington St, Fort Worth	Tarrant	TX
592 Ashbrook	S. 1st St. @ FM 1626	Travis	TX
593 Edinburgh Gardens	12461 Cameron Rd.	Travis	TX
594 Hollows	17865, 17866 & 17870 Old Burnet Rd, Jonestown	Travis	TX
595 Los Cielos	South of the intersection of Ross Rd. and Pearce Ln.	Travis	TX
596 Riverside Meadows	7024 E. Riverside Dr.	Travis	TX
597 Royal Point	192 Meister Ln.	Travis	TX
598 Stirling Bridge	West of Harris Branch Pkwy. approx 2400' S of Parmer Ln.	Travis	TX
599 The Terrace at the Preserve Condominiums	1063 Faris Dr., Lakeway	Travis	TX
600 The Woodlands	East of the intersection of FM969 & FM 3177	Travis	TX
601 Cold Springs	Parmer Lane @ Crystal Falls Parkway	Williamson	TX

Community Name	Address or Location Description	County (or City)	State
602 Creek Bend	FM1660 & Carl Stern Dr.	Williamson	TX
603 The Park at Blackhawk	NW of the intersection of Hodde Ln. and Cele Rd.	Williamson	TX
604 The Villages of Elm Creek	17510 US 290	Williamson	TX
605 Westview Meadows Subdivision	Bagdad Rd. & Municipal Dr.	Williamson	TX
606 The Oaks at Jordan Hills	8325 S 6470 W	Salt Lake	UT
607 Alcova Row (Columbia Pike)	NE Corner Columbia Pike & Randolph	Arlington	VA
608 Hilltop House	1225 N. Pierce Street & 12 N. Queen Street	Arlington	VA
609 Cambria Cove	Genito Road	Chesterfield	VA
610 Charter Colony (including Hartley Village; Sedwick Village)	Near intersection of N. Woolridge Road and Coalfield Road, Midlothian	Chesterfield	VA
611 Longmeadow	13730 Duxton Drive, Chester	Chesterfield	VA
612 Springridge	Craig Rath Blvd (SR 5656) @ Brad McNeer Parkway	Chesterfield	VA
613 Stonebridge Gardens	12300 S. Chalkley Road, Chester	Chesterfield	VA
614 Watermill (includes Silver Lake at Watermill)	2049 Rose Family Drive, Midlothian	Chesterfield	VA
615 Potomac Yard		City of Alexandria	VA
616 Eagle Lake at Plantation North	Intersection of Veranda Way and Volvo Parkway, Chesapeake (Model is at 1200 Debreck Way), Chesapeake	City of Chesapeake	VA
617 Manassas Park Station	N. of Manassas Drive on Digital Drive, Manassas Park	City of Manassas Park	VA
618 Patrick Henry Place	Entrance off of Jefferson Ave off of Hornsby Lane, Newport News (Model is at 12373 Hornsby Lane)	City of Newport News	VA
619 Plaza America III	Sunset Hills and Reston Pkwy	City of Reston	VA
620 Mansfield Farms	Intersection of Nansemond Parkway and Rochdale Lane, Suffolk	City of Suffolk	VA
621 Orchards at Glennwood	Intersection of Indian River Rd and Stumpy Lake Lane, Virginia Beach (Model is at 3928 Orchard Spring Way)	City of Virginia Beach	VA
622 Clevengers Village	Lee Highway & Route 229	Culpeper	VA
623 Alien Hill (including Piney Glen)	Telegraph Road & Woodlawn Road, Alexandria	Fairfax	VA
624 Deerfield Ridge	14014 Gill Brook Lane, Centerville	Fairfax	VA
625 East Market at Fair Lakes	Fair Lakes Parkway & West Ox Road	Fairfax	VA
626 Fair Chase	Legato Road & Lee Highway; Ruffin Drive & Cambryar Street	Fairfax	VA
627 Huntington Metro	N. Kings Highway & Huntington Park Drive, Alexandria	Fairfax	VA
628 Kingstown 51	SE of Dunstable & Castlewellen Drive	Fairfax	VA
629 Oakton Estates / Avondale Glen	Oakton Rd & Marseilles Dr; 11268 Waples Mill Road	Fairfax	VA
630 Vernon Heights	Central Avenue & Route 1	Fairfax	VA
631 Meadows Edge	387 Ewings Lane & 349 Town Run Lane; Fairfax Pike & Double Church Road	Frederick	VA
632 Shenandoah	1500 Double Tollgate Road	Frederick	VA
633 Wakeland Manor	Macedonia Church Road & Tasker Road	Frederick	VA
634 Courthouse Spring	Intersection of Belroi Rd and Erin Leigh Dr, Gloucester (Model is at 5986 Erin Leigh Dr.)	Gloucester	VA
635 Courthouse Square	Intersection of Belroi Rd Jeanne Dr, Gloucester (Model is at 7142 Jeanne Dr.)	Gloucester	VA
636 Holland Hills	2201 Hounds Run, Goochland	Goochland	VA
637 Bell Creek	9021 Vidette Lane Mechanicsville	Hanover	VA
638 Liberty Trace	360/Mechanicsville Tpke @ Jackson Arch drive	Hanover	VA
639 Four Mile Run	2804 Heather Ridge Drive, Richmond	Henrico	VA
640 Hickory Bend/Parkland Place		Henrico	VA
641 Jamerson Park at Twin Hickory	Glen Allen, VA 23059	Henrico	VA
642 Kensington	Prescott Place off Shady Grove Rd., Glen Allen	Henrico	VA
643 Mason Park	4800 Shady Grove Road	Henrico	VA
644 Turnberry	4800 Shady Grove Road	Henrico	VA
645 Wellington Park	Intersection of Grandville Arch and Wellington Circle, Smithfield (Model is at 200 Wellington Circle)	Isle of Wight	VA
646 Marywood	Entrance off of Spring Rd off of route 31 (Jamestown Rd), Williamsburg	James City County	VA
647 Brambleton / Sky Meadows (including Landbay)	Belmont Ridge & (1) Ryan Road, (2) Frontier Dr & (3) Meridian Hill Dr	Loudoun	VA
648 Brook Haven	Washington & Old Dominion Regional Trail	Loudoun	VA
649 Evergreen Village / Evergreen Rural Village	Ryan Road & Beaverdam Drive	Loudoun	VA
650 Goose Creek Village South	Route 267 & Sycolin Road	Loudoun	VA
651 Hamlets at Rokeby Farms	Harmony Church Road & James Monroe Highway	Loudoun	VA
652 Lansdowne	Xerox Drive & Riverside Parkway	Loudoun	VA
653 Lansdowne Town Center	Riverside Parkway & McDowell Square	Loudoun	VA

